STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR RELIGIOUS EDUCATION (SACRE)

Minutes of the meeting of the Standing Advisory Council for Religious Education (SACRE) held in the Council Chamber, Town Hall, Ruthin on Thursday, 31st January, 2002 at 10.00 a.m.

PRESENT

Representing Denbighshire County Council

Councillors S. Drew, K.N. Hawkins, D. Jones, G. Jones (substitute for M.M. Jones), W. Roberts, R. LI. Williams

Representing the Denbighshire Teachers' Joint Negotiating Committee

Mrs. M.B. Lloyd (Chair) and M. Barros-Curtis

Representing Religious Denominations

M. Colbert, Rev. P.J. Collinson, H. Ellis, M. Evans, J. Gibson, S. Harris, J. Kirkham, Parch. J. Owen

Co-opted Members

T. Ap Sion (substitute for the Rev. Prof. L.J. Francis) and the Rev. R. Townsend

ALSO PRESENT

Inspector/Adviser R.E. and Administrative Officer (K.E. Jones)

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE WERE RECEIVED FROM

T. Bryer, N. Roberts and Councillor F. Shaw

1209. <u>WELCOME</u>

The Chair welcomed members to the meeting and reported that the Rev. R. Townsend had been co-opted onto the Council to represent the Christian Education Movement Wales and advised that Councillor W. Roberts had replaced Councillor K.P. Stevens as representative of the Local Education Authority.

1210. MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting held on 8th October, 2001 (previously circulated), as approved by the County Council on 27th November, 2001 were submitted.

Matters Arising:-

Item No. 653 - Minutes: Item No. 281 - Luke Project: Presbyterian Church of Wales - The Inspector/Adviser RE reported that he was still awaiting further details of the availability and cost of the paraphrased Gospel of Luke before progressing that matter with the Corporate Director. In response to a member's question the Inspector/Adviser RE advised that the intention of the project was to produce a modern Welsh language paraphrase of the Gospel of Luke for the youth of Wales.

Item No. 656 - Draft Annual Report of SACRE: Translation Issue - The Chair confirmed that a letter had been sent to Denbighshire's Acting Chief Executive with a copy to the Corporate Director Lifelong Learning expressing SACRE's concerns regarding Welsh translations. The Inspector/Adviser RE

reported that the Corporate Director Lifelong Learning had expressed her regret over the delay in translation experienced by members which had been discussed at a recent meeting of the Bilingual Working Group. She wished to assure members of the Council's definite commitment to translate documents in accordance with requirements.

Item No. 657 - Wales Association of SACREs: Early Years Curriculum - The Inspector/Adviser RE reported that he had written to ACCAC requesting the inclusion of RE and Spiritual Development within the early years curriculum but had yet to receive a response. He was aware that other SACREs had also responded to ACCAC regarding that issue which had resulted in further consultation with a view to the inclusion of RE and Spiritual Development in the early years framework. Reference was also made to Welsh Officer Circular 10/94 in consideration of Religious Education and Collective Worship.

In response to a member's request the Clerk to SACRE confirmed she would arrange for future minutes for consideration by the Council to be page numbered for ease of reference.

RESOLVED that the minutes be received.

1211. EXAMINATION RESULTS 2000 & 2001

The Inspector/Adviser RE submitted tables detailing examination results in Religious Studies for the years 2000 and 2001 within Denbighshire's school (previously circulated) for members consideration.

The Inspector/Adviser RE proceeded to take members through the results in detail and where available comparisons between each years results were made. He particularly referred to the following points:-

- GCSE Results All Religious Studies 2000 & 2001 although there were twenty eight additional candidates in 2001 the pass rate of A* C decreased by almost 10% on the previous year. Overall the results were disappointing and individual schools would be investigating the reasons for the lower performance rate.
- GCSE Results Boys Religious Studies 2000 & 2001 there was an 18% drop overall in boys performance in 2001 compared to the previous year.
- GCSE Results Girls Religious Studies 2000 & 2001 there was an increase of fifteen candidates and there was a mixture of both improving and decreasing results from individual schools on the previous year, however, overall there was a 5% eduction in the performance level.
- Religious Education All (Short Course) the short course was relatively new and schools were having to adjust to new requirements; it was pleasing to note the popularity of the course and an uptake of 167 candidates; figures overall were 4% above the national average at A* C rate.
- A Level Results All Religious Studies 2000 & 2001 all four schools had increased performance significantly from previous years and the number of candidates had been maintained.
- Certificate of Educational Achievements Religious Studies showing very credible results for Rhyl High School; the data for Ysgol Tir Morfa was not currently available.

The Chair informed members that the Inspector/Adviser RE had co-written a book to assist schools with the Religious Studies Short Course which had been published and had been very highly praised. She took the opportunity to congratulate the Inspector/Adviser RE on that achievement and it was also acknowledged that the Inspector/Adviser RE was the Chief Examiner for the Religious Studies Short Course.

During consideration of the examination results members took the opportunity to put specific questions to the Inspector/Adviser RE particularly referring to the significant changes in the A Level syllabus and

teaching implications; provision of RE within individual schools; the content of the RS short course; and the percentage of Christianity and other faiths in Religious Education.

In considering the GCSE results a member expressed his disappointment regarding the lower performance levels for 2001 in comparison with 2000 levels and referred to the possibility of offering INSET to help improve boys performance at that level. A member felt that the increase in the total number of pupils undertaking recognised qualifications in Religious Studies would counterbalance the decrease shown in performance attainment as she felt it was more important that many pupils progressed in Religious Studies at lower levels than a minority of pupils performing at a higher level.

In response to a member's question regarding specialist RE teachers within Denbighshire's schools the Inspector/Adviser RE indicated that all the County's secondary schools employed RE specialists, however, shortage problems may be experienced when one specialist was required to teach at both GCSE and A Level. A member felt that SACRE should be aware if pupils were being disadvantaged because of a lack of specialist teachers.

Members were pleased with the increase in candidates for the short course and the interest the course had generated within schools and the Rev. R. Townsend congratulated Ysgol Dinas Bran on being able to offer both the short course and long course to pupils. At the request of a member the Inspector/Adviser RE agreed to make enquiries regarding whose responsibility it was to decide which courses were followed within individual schools.

Following a full and detailed discussion members expressed disappointment that some schools were not entering pupils for Religious Studies examinations but congratulated those schools who were and the Council felt that the tabulate did not always reflect the true ethos of the school. Overall the examination results reflected well on the County and members congratulated those schools on their results.

RESOLVED that the examination results for the years 2000 and 2001 be received and the verbal report by the Inspector/Adviser RE be accepted.

1212. WALES ASSOCIATION OF SACRES

(a) WASACRE - 8th November, 2001

The Chair, one of Denbighshire SACRE representatives on WASACRE, verbally reported upon the last meeting held on 8th November, 2001 in Ebbw Vale (Blaenau Gwent County Borough) as follows:-

- (i) 'Religious Education and Personal and Social Education' (RE & PSE) a joint presentation given at the meeting by Graham Davies; Eluned Jones; Vaughan Salisbury and Anthea Parker on the content of the PSE framework and guidance document; the ways that emotional, spiritual and moral aspects of PSE relate to RE; the relationship between RE and PSE and how PE and PSE could be effectively integrated. A video showing the effective use of circle time was also shown.
- (ii) 'Rainbows Document' the document assisted youngsters regarding trauma and bereavement and it was agreed WASACRE should discuss the possibility of making the document available to members of the Association; it was agreed to invite Father leuan to a future meeting of the Association in that regard.
- (iii) Welsh Medium Provision: Trinity College, Carmarthen RE and RS courses had not been offered through the medium of Welsh during the past academic year owing to a very small take-up; two new staff members had subsequently been appointed to the RS department and they were keen to offer Welsh medium provision.

Members expressed concern regarding the absence of Welsh medium provision highlighted at Trinity College, Carmarthen and thanked the Chair for her report on that meeting.

RESOLVED that the verbal report by the Chair be accepted.

(b) Religious Education and Personal and Social Education Document (RE & PSE)

The Inspector/Adviser RE submitted the Religious Education and Personal and Social Education (RE & PSE) Document (previously circulated) for members consideration. Members were advised that although the document was non statutory schools were required to address the issue of PSE and the document offered advice and support in that regard.

The Inspector/Adviser RE explained that the document detailed the relationship between RE and PSE and assisted teachers in examining the contribution that RE could make to PSE. He proceeded to take members through the PSE framework detailing the main contributory features; the aims of PSE; aspects which could be developed within the context of the school; and PSE learning outcomes at each Key Stage and the corresponding RE contexts. The document suggested the kind of contexts which RE could provide for in the acquisition of relevant knowledge, the promotion of attitudes and values and the development of skills identified in the PSE framework. Particular reference was made to the merits of 'circle time'.

In conclusion the Inspector/Adviser RE commended the document and felt that it would provide valuable advice to schools in the contribution of RE to the PSE framework and suggested members consider the distribution of the document to Denbighshire's schools.

Members fully endorsed the document and paid tribute to the excellent work undertaken by the officers in its preparation and production.

RESOLVED that:-

- (a) the Religious Education and Personal and Social Education Document be fully endorsed, and
- (b) copies of the document be distributed to Denbighshire's schools.

(c) Nomination of Representatives at WASACRE/ACCAC Symposium

The Inspector/Adviser RE submitted letters received from WASACRE dated 7th October, 2001 and 20th December, 2001 (previously circulated) seeking nominations for representatives to serve on the Association's Executive Committee and nominations for representatives to attend a Symposium to be held in association with ACCAC on 27th April, 2002 at Llanidloes High School. In seeking the election of officers to the Association's Executive reference was made to the Code of Practice (previously circulated).

The Chair advised that the aim of the Symposium was to consider the role and status of RE Agreed Syllabuses and WASACRE had agreed that three delegates from each SACRE together with two teachers would be invited to attend. In considering the nominations of the two teachers the Chair referred to the membership of the Working Party for the Agreed Syllabus and suggested that two of the four teachers on the Working Party be nominated to attend at the Symposium as she felt their input would be representative of the Denbighshire SACRE.

Members concurred with the view of the Chair and it was suggested that, if possible, one teacher from the primary sector and one teacher from the secondary sector be nominated to attend the Symposium. Members requested that the Inspector/Adviser RE liaise directly with the four teachers concerned in the hope that two of those teachers would be in a position to attend the Symposium on 27th April, 2002 and it was:-

RESOLVED ACCORDINGLY

The Inspector/Adviser RE referred to the consideration of a Nationally Agreed Syllabus for Wales to increase the status of the subject and to increase funding. Members felt that it was important for RE to be overseen at local level and the Inspector/Adviser RE assured members that Religious Education would remain locally determined.

The Chair reminded members that she was currently Vice-Chair of WASACRE and would be invested as Chair in accordance with the usual practice. As Denbighshire SACRE would already have representation on the Executive Committee she proposed that no nomination be submitted to WASACRE and it was:-

RESOLVED ACCORDINGLY.

(ch) Annual WASACRE Report 2000 - 2001

The Inspector/Adviser RE submitted the Annual WASACRE Report 2000 - 2001 (previously circulated) detailing the activities of the Association. The Chair referred to item 6 on that report and advised that the Association were still awaiting a meeting with Miss. Jane Davidson, AM, Minister for Education and Lifelong Learning in the National Assembly.

RESOLVED that the report be received and accepted.

At this point in the proceedings the Corporate Director Lifelong Learning arrived at the meeting and at the invitation of the Chair addressed the Council. The Corporate Director Lifelong Learning confirmed the Council's commitment to ensuring the provision of Welsh translations in accordance with the Council's requirements.

1213. SILENT REFLECTION

Councillor W. Roberts suggested that the Council consider beginning future meetings with a prayer. Members discussed the proposal and felt that it would be wrong to assume everyone in attendance at future meetings had practising faith and agreed that it would be more appropriate to allow individuals a few minutes silence.

RESOLVED that future meetings of the Denbighshire SACRE begin with silent reflection.

At this juncture the Inspector/Adviser RE advised that he had copies of the booklet 'Aiming for Excellence in RE' produced by Estyn containing the amendments to the Welsh translation as requested by Denbighshire SACRE at their meeting of 7th February, 2001. Copies of the booklet were available to members at the meeting.

The meeting concluded at 11.35 a.m.

RELIGIOUS EDUCATION: INSET PROGRAMME 2002 – 2003

PRIMARY COURSES

RE Subject Leader/Curriculum Post Holders - Consultation and Sharing Day

[English medium] Provider: GPC

9.15 - 3.15

23rd September 2002 – County Hall, Mold: Up to 30 places 24th September 2002 – Erlas, Wrexham: Up to 30 places

Teaching Christianity and Judaism at Key Stage 1

[English medium] Provider: GPC

9.15 - 3.15

4th December 2002 – Erlas, Wrexham: Up to 30 places

5th December 2002 – Dinerth Road, Colwyn Bay: Up to 30 places

Teaching Christianity and Hinduism at Key Stage 1

[English medium] Provider: GPC

9.15 - 3.15

30th January 2003 – Middle Lane, Denbigh: Up to 30 places

31st January 2003 – County Hall, Mold: Up to 30 places

Teaching Christianity, Hinduism and/or Judaism in Primary Schools

[Welsh medium] Provider: Carys Thomas (of ESIS)

9.15 - 3.15

7th March 2003 – Middle Lane, Denbigh: Up to 20 places

Planning Primary RE – Half Day Workshop sessions

9.15 - 12.00; 12.30 - 3.00

[English medium; Welsh group opportunity if sufficient numbers]

30th April 2003 – Middle Lane, Denbigh

1st May 2003 – County Hall, Mold

2nd May 2003 – Erlas, Wrexham

Raising Standards in RE through Key Skills

9.15 - 3.15

[English medium] Provider: GPC

3rd July 2003 – Dinerth Road, Colwyn Bay

4th July 2003 – Coounty Hall, Mold

SECONDARY COURSES

Heads of Department – Sharing and Consultation Day

9.15 - 3.15

[English medium; Welsh discussion group opportunity] Leader: GPC

20th September 2002 – County Hall Mold: Up to 32 places

Key Stage 3: Re-Energising Key Stage 3RE

9.15 - 3.15

[English medium] Provider: GPC 27th January 2003 - County Hall, Mold: Up to 30 places

Raising Standards in Key Stage 4 RE

9.15 - 3.15

[English medium] Provider: GPC 18th March 2003 – Middle Lane, Denbigh

$Heads\ of\ Department-Update\ Session\ (Twilight)$

4.00 - 5.15

[English medium] Leader: GPC 24th June 2003 – County Hall, Mold

Short Course

Option A or Option B

GCSE: Religious Studies **SPECIFICATION A** Short Course Full Course Full Course Staged Option A and Option B Assessment: Any 2 of: Any 1 of: The full courses Christianity 1 (OR Christianity 1 (OR in either Christianity: RC) Christianity: RC) specification can Option A be done over two Christianity 2 (OR Christianity 2 (OR Christianity: Gospels) key stages: 1 Christianity: Gospels) Five units of study: short course in Judaism Judaism *Yr 10 & 11: the* 1. Relationships (Issues of love, Islam Islam 2nd in Yr 12/13 *marriage and divorce*) Hinduism Hinduism 2. Is it Fair? (Issues of justice and equality) 3. Looking for Meaning (Issues about God, life and death) Content 4. Identity and Belonging (Issues Assessment: Assessment: Sections: of choice, personal and corporate identity) 2 papers of 1 paper of Worship 5. Our World (Exploring creation 1hr 45 mins 1hr 45 mins Celebration plus 2 pieces plus 1 piece and our place in the world) Note: Authority of internal of internal In Specification B **Beliefs** assessment assessment Centres can choose work. Community work. between the 1 for each Morality [80% - 20%] following options as option. Lifestyle and regards religions: [80% - 20%] Examination: **Social Practice** 1. Christianity only Structured questions based (2 distinct traditions on written and visual within) stimulus, with 2. Christianity and 1 opportunities for extended Examination: other principal writing. A: Short Answer religion 2. Human 1 question per unit B: Stimulus based - short 3. Christianity and 2 requiring details from 2 and extended answers other principal religious traditions; 1 per C: 2 out of 3 - structured religions. unit being an evaluative essav

Option B

Five units of study:

1. Religion and Conflict (Issues of war, violence and peace)

SPECIFICATION B

- 2. Religion and Medicine (Issues of medical ethics and the *sanctity of life)*
- 3. Religious Expression (Issues of expressing one's faith)
- 4. Authority: Religion and State (Issues of law and order in religion and society)
- 5. Suffering and Evil (Issues of innocent suffering and the concept of evil)

auestion.

Content Sections:

- 1. Religious beliefs, values & traditions
- experience and issues
- 3. Key Concepts Plus: Core Content Grid - per religion

Assessment:

In both Option A and B centres can choose a 100% examination option [1 hr 50 mins], or an option that includes internal assessment. For the later option, the internal assessment is based on Unit 5, and the exam covers Units 1 - 4 (I hr 35mins) [80% -20%]

AS/Advanced: Religious Studies

ADVANCED SUBSIDIARY (AS)

Any 3 of the following 7 (as long as they are from different groups):

Group 1:

1a – Introduction to Christianity (Roots of Christian Diversity; Some Key Beliefs & Practices in Contemporary Christianity)

1b – Eastern Religions

One of: [i] Introduction to Buddhism (Life of Buddha; Some Central Concepts and Practices [ii] Introduction to Hinduism (Beliefs about Deity and Humanity; Some Key Beliefs and Practices) [iii] Introduction to Sikhism (Ten Gurus; Some Key Beliefs and Practices)

Group II:

2a - Western Religions

One of: [i] Introduction to Islam (Foundations; Some Key Beliefs and Practices)

[ii] Introduction to Judaism (Foundations; Some Key Beliefs and Practices)

2b – Introduction to Philosophy of Religion (Existence of God; Evil and Suffering)

Group III:

3a – Introduction to Religion and Ethics (*Ethical Theory*; *Applied Ethics: Sexual Relationships*)
3b – Introduction to the Old Testament (*Literature of the OT*; *Some Key Aspects of the OT*)

Group IV:

4 – Introduction to the New Testament (*Literature* of the New Testament; Some Key Themes of the New Testament)

Note:

AS Levels may be taken in their own right (and as such results will stand); OR, they may be taken as 'part one' of the Advanced Level qualification (in this case results are 'held over' till the final – unless 'cashed in').

Examination:

1 paper of 1.25 hours for each module (= 3)

Each paper has 1 compulsory stimulus based structured question and a structured essay (choice of 2)

Papers available January and June each year.

Weighting: AS - 100%A - 50%

Examination:

1 paper of 1.5 hours for each module (= 2); plus Synoptic Paper 1.5 hrs (Topic notified 2 months before; answer in controlled conditions) Each paper has 1 compulsory stimulus based structured question and a structured essay (choice of 2)

Papers available June each year.
Weighting:
A – 50%

ADVANCED (A2)

Any 2 of the following 7 (as long as they are in different groups, and which follow on from AS choices) plus the Synoptic Unit:

Group I:

5a – Studies in Christianity (The Church and its ministry; Contemporary Christological Debates; Christianity in the Modern World)

5b – Eastern Religions

One of: [i] Studies in Buddhism (Theravada and Mahayana Buddhism; Buddhist Belief and Practice; Buddhism in Britain) [ii] Studies in Hinduism (Vedic Hinduism; Bhagavad Gita;

Contemporary Hinduism)

[iii] Studies in Sikhism (Scriptures; Modern Developments; Sikh morality and identity)

Group II:

 $6a-Western\ Religions$

One of: [i] Studies in Islam (Law; Muslim theology and philosophy; Islam in the Contemporary World)

[ii] Studies in Judaism (Mysticism and the Hasidim; Modern Expressions; Significant issues and events)

Group III:

7a – Studies in Religion and Ethics (Ethical theory; Applied ethics: Justice; Applied ethics: Conflict)

7b – Studies in the Old Testament (Critical methods of studying the OT; Concept of God; Prophecy)

Group IV:

8 – Studies in the New Testament (*Critical methods of studying the NT*; *The Church in the NT*; *Ethical teaching of the NT*) *Synoptic:*

9 – Religion and Human Experience (religious Authority; Religious Experience; Life, Death and Life after Death

_

RELIGIOUS STUDIES

Any two of the following options:

- 1. Jesus and the Foundations of Christianity
- 2. Christian Life in Contemporary Society
- 3. Christian Life and Worship
- 4. Sikhism in Contemporary Society
- 5. Hinduism in Contemporary Society
- 6. Buddhism in Contemporary Society
- 7. Judaism in Contemporary Society
- 8. Islam in Contemporary Society
- 9. Christian Practice and Morality (Not with Options 2 or 3 above)

[The above content has similarities, but is not identical to the GCSE Specification A options]

Entry Level Certificate (COEA)

3

Designed for lower-attaining candidates, i.e. those not typically reaching Level 3 of the National Curriculum

Assessment:

1 internal examination paper (with 10% weighting) and 1 external paper of 30 minutes (also 10% weighting; = 20% in total)

4 internal assessment pieces of work:

- 1. Investigative
- 2. Oral (*)
- 3. Imaginative
- 4. Structured (*)

(Each of the above4 have a 20% weighting = 80%)

(*) – externally controlled

RELIGIOUS EDUCATION

Five units of study:

- 1. Relationships (Issues of love, marriage and divorce)
- 2. Is it Fair? (Issues of justice and equality)
- 3. Looking for Meaning (Issues about God, life and death)
- 4. Identity and Belonging (Issues of choice, personal and corporate identity)
- 5. Our World (Exploring creation and our place in the world)

[The above content is identical to the GCSE Specification B Option A course]

Assessment:

1 internal examination paper (with 10% weighting) and 1 external paper of 30 minutes (also 10% weighting) – both will be on Unit 1 of the Specification

4 internally assessed tasks, 1 for each of the remaining units in the Specification. 2 will be set by the WJEC, and will cover Christianity only; the other two will cover the two religious traditions studied. (20 % weightings = 80%)

- 1. Imaginative/Creative (*)
- 2. Extended Writing (*)
- 3. Oral or Stimulus
- 4. Oral or Stimulus

(*) Set by WJEC

Denbighshire County Council

pfp publishing ltd
Freepost 59
Rochester
ME2 4BR
Tel 0845 602 4337
Fax 0845 602 4338
www.pfp-publishing.com

Dear RE Adviser

How can you continue to encourage good, consistent collective worship in your LEA?

Both The Primary Assembly File and The Secondary Assembly File are already used by about a quarter of primary and secondary schools. The files make planning and delivering collective worship easier for today's busy school leaders.

Now you can make sure that your schools discover how useful these assemblies are. We can send you free samples and an order form with a special price for your schools. Or I can negotiate bulk subscription rates with you or a member of your SACRE.

Why are these assemblies so popular with schools in the UK?

The assemblies in each file are stimulating and fun for the children and pupils. As well as a moving story, each assembly comes with the choice of a thought or prayer. Our assembly writers are mostly practising Heads or Heads of Department and understand what makes a good assembly.

The format of the files makes life easier for today's busy school leader and SMT. The assemblies are arranged in themes so that they can fit easily into the school assembly cycle or plan. They can also be used off the shelf if a planned assembly falls through at the last minute.

Both files work on a subscription basis. Subscribers to The Primary Assembly File receive 20 assemblies per term. Subscribers to The Secondary Assembly File are sent 30 assemblies per term. Each file also comes with a free CD of classical music so that music can be played as pupils and children assemble.

What to do next.

Fill out the attached form so that I or one of my colleagues can contact you. Let us know if you are interested in a bulk subscription deal for your LEA or would like your schools to receive samples and a special subscription rate. I look forward to receiving your form.

With best wishes

Marcus Deyes Marketing and Sales Manager pfp publishing ltd.

Marcus Deixes

APPENDICES NOT AVAILABLE IN ELECTRONIC FORM